

TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH

One Golden Beach Drive Golden Beach, FL 33160

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 18, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor Glenn Singer & Town Council Members

From: Lissette Perez, Town Clerk

Subject: Town Council Minutes

Item Numbers:

2_____

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Town Council adopt the attached minutes of the June 16, 2020 Special Town Council Zoom Virtual Meeting.



TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH

One Golden Beach Drive Golden Beach, FL 33160

Official Minutes for the June 16, 2020 Special Town Council Zoom Virtual Meeting called for 5:00 P.M.

Zoom Room Meeting ID: 890 5255 7350 Password: 067687

For Dial In Only: Call 929.205.6099 Meeting ID: 890 5255 7350

THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE AT GOOD AND WELFARE; PLEASE HOLD ALL QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS UNTIL THEN! THE PUBLIC IS ENCOURAGED TO SUBMIT ALL COMMENTS VIA EMAIL TO <u>LPEREZ@GOLDENBEACH.US</u> BY 2:00 P.M. TUESDAY, JUNE 16, 2020.

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Mayor Singer called the meeting to order at 5:08 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Councilmember's Present: Mayor Glenn Singer, Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein, Councilmember Jaime Mendal, Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein, *Councilmember Judy Lusskin (*** joined the meeting during Presentations ****)*

Staff Present: Town Manager Alexander Diaz, Town Attorney Steve Helfman, Town Clerk Lissette Perez, Finance Director Maria D. Camacho, Police Chief Rudy Herbello, Resident Services Director Michael Glidden

C. PRESENTATIONS / TOWN PROCLAMATIONS

Mayor Singer congratulated the Town Manager for winning the Professional Management excellence award, for outstanding top city manager. It is a well deserved award and he thinks the video was great, thanked the Town staff for putting the video together.

D. MOTION TO SET THE AGENDA

ADDITIONS/ DELETIONS/ REMOVAL OF ITEMS FROM CONSENT AGENDA/ AND CHANGES TO AGENDA

Town Manager stated that Councilmember Bernstein asked for a discussion item to be added to the civic center item. In addition, there was a scribbler's error on page 88 of the agreement for the civic center.

E. GOOD AND WELFARE

None

F. MAYOR'S REPORT

Stated that on July 1st guests will be allowed to go to the Town's beaches. He, the Town Manager, and Finance Department have gone through the next three years budgets and feel very comfortable that we can financially handle the Civic Center project with no issues. Made tremendous progress thus far and we have only just begun.

G. CORONAVIRUS UPDATE

Numbers of COVID cases have stayed at 15. No more cases have been reported to the Town. Mayor Gimenez indicated that he is going to keep the county through the same level of opening through the summer. Even though the number of cases go up, the hospital cases remain going down. Will open our beaches to visitors on July 1st, they must be accompanied by a resident with a Town issued ID. Residents will need to show ID's through the end of August. Will provide amenities on Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays and Mondays. We will be disinfecting amenities on Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursday's. Police have gone back to normal staffing. We do have the town-wide safer at home order still in effect. The safer at home order will remain in place through August 31st in Miami-Dade County.

H. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Mendal

Asked if the Town Manager could provide an update on the participation rates with the Census and give some more information on when the deadline actually is. Seen a lot of mosquitoes lately. Seems like we are inundated here, wanted to know if we could up the spraying. Also seeing a lot of iguanas, wanted to know if we can do anything about that. Seen that many municipalities are sending resolutions or letters to Mayor Gimenez to start distributing the cares act funds. It may be prudent that we send a letter in.

Town Manager stated that the Town has already done that.

Councilmember Bernstein

Biggest issue is also the mosquitoes. They've gotten so out of control. Personally started to have leaks in his house and the roofer told him that it is iguanas causing the leaks. Just wanted to raise that awareness.

Vice Mayor Einstein

Was on the beach on Saturday and Sunday. They are being ran very efficiently, beach attendants were checking for IDs, people were very spread out, maintained social distance and the attendants could not have been more of service to him. Construction sites – it seems like there is tremendous activity going on at the construction sites. Did see that they are taking temperature, and that they were wearing their masks. Mosquitos are coming out in droves. It is the worse he has ever seen. In addition, termites are swarming by the droves. People keeping on their outside lights, it attracts them. Thinks people need to be mindful of that to avoid the swarming of those. Town looks great. Keeps looking clean.

Councilwoman Lusskin

Congratulated the Town Manager on his award. Stated some of the problems with the mosquitoes is that with COVID-19 all the abandoned homes have not been kept up with. Hoping as things ease up with COVID-19, we can take a better look there and lean

on the homeowners. Wants everyone on the police force to know that wearing the badge is something to be proud of, and we appreciate you, everyone at Golden Beach thanks you.

I. TOWN MANAGER REPORT

First thanked the staff for nominating him for the award and thanked the staff and Council for all they have done to help him get the award. As it relates to mosquitos, we have a weekly mosquito spraying program in place. If you feel that you have a higher concentration of mosquitos on your property they'll come out to your home and spray your property. There is a \$150.00 fee for that. On the agenda is the Center Island Pump Station agreement. The interest rate is less than 1%; it is a 20-year loan. You have already authorized it, he just wanted you to see the terms. The Center Island Pump Station Project is fully funded, and fully designed. Town Attorney is putting the RFP package together to go out to bid. We have intentionally held back on the bidding process, because in the state's budget there is a \$500,000 allocation that our lobbyist and he were able to get for Golden Beach. If we issue the RFP before the budget is signed, we lose that \$500,000. Trying not to leave free money on the table. If the Governor vetoes that \$500,000, we will just have to borrow the money that we have already pledged, without increasing the Stormwater fee or taxes. Stated that you may have noticed over the past couple of weeks we have been doing a lot of maintenance in Town, replacing curbs and gutters. He could not be prouder of the men and women that wear the police uniforms in Golden Beach. Know that our police officers are professionals that practice responsible policing. Our staff go to annual training on an array of issues. Asks our residents that when you see or notice on social media anything, do not overreact. Know that the Mayor, Chief and I are part of a working group in the County were we get reports that let us know whether or not certain activities are viable or just there to create more panic. Trust in your management team, we are here to ensure your safety.

J. TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT

None

K. ORDINANCES – SECOND READING

None

L. ORDINANCES - FIRST READING

1. A Ordinance of the Town Council Amending the Town's Code of Ordinances by Amending Chapter 52, "Landscaping" To Implement Mandatory Year-Round Landscaping Conservation Measures.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN'S CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADDING SECTION 52-17 TO A NEW ARTICLE II "YEAR-ROUND LANSCAPING IRRIGATION RESTRICTIONS" WITHIN CHAPTER 52, "LANDSCAPING" TO IMPLEMENT THE MANDATORY YEAR-ROUND LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION MEASURES RULE OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT (40E-24, F.A.C.); PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY, PROVIDING THE LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SCHEDULE: PROVIDING EXCEPTIONS TO THE LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SCHEDULE: PROVIDING FOR A REQUIREMENT TO OPERATE TECHNOLOGY THAT INHIBITS OR INTERRUPTS AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM DURING PERIODS OF SUFFICIENT MOISTURE: PROVIDING FOR VARIANCES FROM THE SPECIFIC DAY THE WEEK LIMITATIONS; PROVIDING FOR OF ENFORCEMENT: PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES FOR PROVIDING FOR VIOLATION: SEVERABILITY: PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION: PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Exhibit: Agenda Report No. 1 Ordinance No. 592.20

Sponsor: Town Administration

Recommendation: Motion to Approve Ordinance No. 592.20

A motion to approve was made by <u>Councilmember Mendal</u>, seconded by <u>Vice</u> <u>Mayor Einstein</u>.

On roll call, the following vote ensued:	
Mayor Glenn Singer	<u>Aye</u>
Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein	Aye
Councilmember Judy Lusskin	Aye
Councilmember Jaime Mendal	Aye
Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein	Aye

The motion passed.

Town Manager stated that this ordinance is required by all of the municipalities of the state. How aggressive will be the enforcement? Residents should not fear this ordinance. We are not going to ask people to put in new maintenance systems or controls. When a new house comes in, we will ask them to put it in then.

M. QUASI JUDICIAL RESOLUTIONS

None

N. CIVIC CENTER COMPLEX MASTERPLAN UPDATE

Town Manager spoke on this item. We have spent the COVID-19 period fine-tuning our negations with the highest ranked firm. There is a contract on tonight's agenda for you to award. Tried to bring you an item that will discuss all aspects of the Civic Center in its totality. It is ready for your action tonight.

O. CONSENT AGENDA

- 2. Official Minutes of the May 26, 2020 Special Town Council Zoom Virtual Meeting
- 3. A Resolution of the Town Council Authorizing the Use of Law Enforcement Trust Fund ("LETF") Monies For The Purchase of In-Vehicle Printers For Ticket Writing System.

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE USE OF LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND ("LETF") MONIES FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION AND INITIAL PURCHASE OF IN VEHICLE PRINTERS FOR TICKET AND REPORT WRITING SYSTEM; PURCHASE OF PORTABLE TABLETS FOR SAME SYSTEM; ACCESSORIES ALL TO BE USED BY THE GOLDEN BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Exhibit: Agenda Report No. 3 Resolution No. 2679.20

Sponsor: Town Administration

Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2679.20

4. A Resolution of the Town Council Nominating the Town's Civic Center Master Plan Community Involvement Project for the Florida Municipal Achievement Award for 2020.

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, NOMINATING THE TOWN'S CIVIC CENTER MASTER PLAN COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROJECT FOR THE FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES (FLC) "FLORIDA MUNICIPAL ACHIEVEMENT" AWARD FOR 2020; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Exhibit: Agenda Report No. 4 Resolution No. 2680.20

Sponsor: Town Administration

Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2680.20

Consensus vote <u>5</u> Ayes, <u>0</u> Nays. Items O2 – O4 pass.

P. TOWN RESOLUTIONS

5. A Resolution of the Town Council Approving A Design Build Agreement with Gerrits Construction, Inc. For The Town Civic Center Complex. A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING A DESIGN BUILD AGREEMENT WITH GERRITS CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE TOWN CIVIC CENTER COMPLEX; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Exhibit: Agenda Report No. 5 Resolution No. 2681.20

Sponsor: Town Administration

Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution No. 2681.20

A motion to approve was made by <u>Councilmember Lusskin</u>, seconded by <u>Councilmember Mendal</u>.

On roll call, the following vote ensued:	
Mayor Glenn Singer	<u>Aye</u>
Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein	Aye
Councilmember Judy Lusskin	<u>Aye</u>
Councilmember Jaime Mendal	<u>Aye</u>
Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein	<u>Aye</u>

The motion passed.

Town Manager spoke on the item. Stated that when we began this process there were two routes we could've taken. The traditional design than issue a construction contract, or we could issue a design build process which guarantees us a maximum price for what is delivered as part of our request for proposals. This past year we worked with our community for what is required for our civic center complex master plan. We had open dialogues with the community, had meetings with them, put up surveys and had internet discussions. Took a project that was originally a Taj Mahal and shaped it into a project that we felt was up to scale with our community. We went out to bid; we had a number of respondents. You created a committee of residents that you tasked with interviewing and ranking the firms for you. Than the Council met with the top ranked firms and you authorized him and the Attorney to negotiate a guaranteed price contract based on a series of deliverables that we're asking you to adopt tonight. In your agenda tonight you have what the building will look like, what the floor plan will be. What amenities we will be getting on our site. Our site will have one additional tennis court for a total of three tennis courts; it has our pickle ball court, our dog park, new lawn area for our residents to enjoy, and we can project movies onto our building. It calls for approximately 108 parking spaces. Site plan shows an elevated building with parking underneath. The first floor will be your Administration. On the third floor will be our building department and the council chambers, which will double as an event space. This proposal does not include anything for the current Town Hall building. They came in with a proposal of \$5.3-million. We then asked for additional amenities and changes. Therefore, we negotiated up front \$250,000 worth of improvements to their design, to settle on \$5.5million guaranteed maximum price for this facility. What's not included is the screening for the area underneath the building. Councilmember Bernstein has been asked to put

together a committee to look at what we can do with the area underneath the building and he has volunteered to do so. We have assurance in our contract that whatever we decide to do under the building, the footing and all of the headers are there for us. The pickle ball court is also not included. Those are the only two items not included. One of the beauties of this contract is typically your contractor will give you a one-year warranty on their craftsmanship. The Town Attorney and he were able to negotiation a two-year warranty on their work. All of their equipment has come with their standard warranties. There is a performance bond required for this project. If for some reason Gerrits Construction goes away there is a bond guaranteeing that the project will be delivered for the set the price. The bulk of this project is being paid for with non-tax dollars. We have pledged \$88,000 from this year's budget and a pledge of \$2.5-million from the law enforcement trust fund. We have a \$2-million line of credit that we have pledged towards this project. The rate to pay back of this \$2-million credit line is absorbed in our current budget. In our budget today, there is a line item that pays for that note, without asking our residents for another penny. In addition to that, in Fiscal Year 2021 the Finance Director and he have pledged \$500,000 to this project as well as another \$500,000 pledge in the 2022 fiscal year budget. He gives you his word that we will be working over the course of the next two years, if he is still your City Manager, to convert this building into your gym. This is a very responsible approach to delivering this project in Golden Beach.

Contractors on the Project, David Gerrits and Dominick Raineiri stated that they are ready to get started on the project. Feel very confident with the budgeted amount for the project.

Attorney Helfman spoke on the item. Stated that if anyone looks at the contract there are one or two exhibits that are called for to be added. We know that that is the way the contract is contemplated. We do not want anyone to think we over looked anything. Regarding performance and payment which was an issue that came up by one of our residents there is a full performance and payment bond that guarantees the completion of this project. We always have a provision within any of our contracts, where we can terminate them at our convenience. We simply would just have to pay for the work done up to that point. It is very clear in the contract that you get the full scope of the services for a fixed price. Once we go ahead and execute this, we will make sure all the exhibits are correct and in place and all the references to different sections are correct.

Councilmember Bernstein stated that he knows that some of the Councilmembers don't support spending money for screening Town Hall on A1A. He would like to stress why he believes making sure we have adequate support for the front facade is so important. The Town Hall is going to be one of Golden Beach's biggest expenditures over the next few years. No matter how well it is designed inside and outside most of the residents are going to render their opinion on the building based on its curb appeal. Our Town revenues are based on home values and he believes we need a Town Hall that will help improve the values and not detract from them. The building is beautiful, this is not to take away from anything, this is to make sure the Council is supporting it. Stated this only to make sure we are all on the same page to support trying to improve the front of the building because it is going to be our Town Hall for the next twenty or thirty years.

Town Manager stated that they have his commitment that they will work on that issue.

Councilwoman Lusskin asked if they were considering making the decision on the screening tonight?

Mayor Singer stated no.

Councilwoman Lusskin stated that she noticed that in the contract it states a one-year warrantee for the subcontractors. Will the extended two-year warrantee the Manager spoke about apply to that as well?

David Gerrits that is the materials from mechanicals, electrical and plumbing manufacturers such as the air conditioning will not give more than a one-year warrantee for their equipment. What they worked out with the Manager and Town Attorney is a two-year warrantee for workmanship, for example if the cocking on the windows is not done right or the doors are not closing properly, things like that.

Town Attorney stated that he believes as part of the final cleanup of the contract that will be addressed. We have a full and absolute warrantee for two years from Gerrits for all of the work that they are doing and putting into this building. There are components of the building, like machinery that they are simply installing that they are not guaranteeing.

Vice Mayor Einstein in terms of the contract, do we have a completion date, and is there a penalty if it is not completed within that period.

Town Manager stated yes the time frame is twenty-four months from the date of execution and yes, there is a penalty.

Vice Mayor Einstein asked who is the certifier as to the draws.

Town Manager stated we are. We are bringing on a team to help qualify each of the draws.

Vice Mayor Einstein in terms of the ultimate contract does it have retainage and can you explain the retainage.

Town Manager stated the retainage is the percentage of the value of the work that has been completed that we hold till the end to ensure that all of the liens that have been placed on the project and the project has been delivered as specified and within the time period specified. Once all of the expectations of the project are met, the retainage is released.

Vice Mayor Einstein in terms of the funding of the contract. Do we, as the Council, have to have any concerns as to the timing of when we will get anything from the government

Town Manger stated that we have an open line of credit with City National Bank for \$4million dollars without any prepayment penalties. We have pledged \$2.5-million of \$3.5million that we have in executed DAGS. The good thing about our loan is that it does not require that we pay down the \$2-million at any time, it is an open line for \$4-million that we can have all \$4-million open for twenty years or we can pay down \$2-million. If for some reason it takes longer for those DAGS to get here, there is enough budget built in to your current budget that will allow us to pay the principle and interest for a longer period of time should we choose to do so.

Vice Mayor Einstein asked if all the tennis courts are being relocated

Town Manager stated that during construction we will provide for the pickle ball court, two tennis courts, and tot lot to continue to be used. Tweddle Park is off grounds, no basketball courts, no dog park, and no garbage truck parking. Once the building is ready all those facilities get shifted and relocated to other parts of the project.

Councilmember Mendal asked if the Town Manager can explain what the \$250,000 worth of additions are and when will we break ground.

Town Manager stated that the civil work will begin in November and construction on all of the site preparation. When this project was delivered the second floor and third floor between the two spaces it was not enclosed or under air conditioning. The bulk of that money went to enclose those areas and put them under air conditioning. Council also wanted an additional elevator. There will be two elevators one stretcher, one non-stretcher elevator.

Councilmember Mendal thanked all of the staff for their hard work on the contract.

Town Manager stated that over the course of the next few months they will be working with the design team to commence construction. At this point the involvement of the public is very limited and the involvement of the Town Council is very limited. At this point the Administration is taking control of all of the design elements approving the plans at 30%, 60%, and 80%. Councilmember Bernstein will be working with the Council as it relates to the area under the building, that will go back to the Council for its review and consent. Thanked all of the staff for their hard work.

Councilmember Bernstein commend the staff and Police Department for trying to inform the residents as much as possible. There has been a lot of concern over different types of activities and street blockages. A lot of people express concerns saying they are hearing different things from different areas. The Town Manager established that going forward we will inform our residents if something is done in one of our neighboring communities.

Mayor Glenn Singer: None Requested

Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein: None Requested

Councilmember Judy Lusskin: None Requested

Councilmember Jaime Mendal: None Requested

Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein: None Requested

Town Manager Alexander Diaz None Requested

Town Manager stated that on Wednesday, July 1st we will receive the Town's assessed values.

There will be no meeting in July. The August meeting is scheduled for August 18th. Asks all residents to continue to use their masks when they are out in public and continue to be responsible when they travel.

Councilmember Mendal asked if the zoom meetings are going to continue.

Town Attorney stated that all indications point to the virtual meetings continuing through September.

R. ADJOURNMENT:

A motion to adjourn the Council Meeting was made by <u>Councilmember Mendal</u> seconded by <u>Councilmember Bernstein.</u>

Consensus vote <u>5</u> Ayes <u>0</u> Nays. Motion passes.

The meeting adjourned at <u>6:42 p.m.</u>

Respectfully submitted,

Lissette Perez Lissette Perez Town Clerk



TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH

One Golden Beach Drive Golden Beach, FL 33160

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 18, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor Glenn Singer & Town Council Members

Alexander Diaz.

Town Manager

Item Number:

Subject: Resolution No. 2683.20 – Authorizing a Joint Project Agreement with FDOT for Turf and Landscape Maintenance

Jer B)

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Town Council adopt the attached Resolution No. 2683.20 as presented.

Background:

From:

The Town has had a long standing agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for the maintenance of Ocean Boulevard. The agreement calls for the Town to maintain Ocean Boulevard and reimburses the Town for expenses related to the maintenance.

Our annual costs for this service averages \$142,500 per year, of which \$13,972.00 is provided by FDOT.

Fiscal Impact:

The Town will receive \$13,972.00 from the Florida Department of Transportation.

TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. 2683.20

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING A JOINT PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR TURF AND LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND TOWN MANAGER TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Golden Beach, Florida (the "Town") desires to enter into a Joint Project Agreement with the State of Florida Department of Transportation ("FDOT") concerning turf and landscape maintenance of certain FDOT rights-of-way; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that approval of the attached Joint Project

Agreement between FDOT and the Town is in the best interest of the Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

<u>Section 1.</u> <u>Recitals Adopted.</u> That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference.

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Agreement Approved.</u> That the Joint Project Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (the "Agreement"), is hereby approved, and the Mayor is authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the Town, once approved by the Town Attorney as to form and legal sufficiency.

<u>Section 3.</u> <u>Implementation.</u> That the Mayor and Town Manager are authorized to take any and all action necessary to implement and enforce the purposes of this Resolution and the Agreement on behalf of the Town.

Section 4. Effective Date. That this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

Sponsored by the **Town Administration**.

The Motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered by _____,

seconded by ______, and on roll call the following vote ensued:

Mayor Glenn Singer Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein Councilmember Judy Lusskin Councilmember Jaime Mendal Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Golden Beach,

Florida, this $\underline{18}^{\text{th}}$ day of <u>August</u>, 2020.

MAYOR GLENN SINGER

ATTEST:

LISSETTE PEREZ TOWN CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

STEPHEN J. HELFMAN TOWN ATTORNEY



Florida Department of Transportation

RON DESANTIS GOVERNOR 1000 NW 111th Avenue Miami, Florida 33172-5800 KEVIN J. THIBAULT SECRETARY

October 3, 2019

Mr. Alexander Diaz, Town Manager Town of Golden Beach 1 Golden Beach Drive Golden Beach, FL 33160 (305) 932-0744 <u>alexdiaz@goldenbeach.us</u>

NOTICE TO PROCEED

Contract Number: Financial Project Number: County: Project Description: ASF58-R0 252354-4-78-01 Miami-Dade Turf and Landscape-Department Funded Agreement

Dear Mr. Diaz:

The Department and the Town of Golden Beach have executed a contract for the Department Funded Agreement (DFA) noted above for a period of one (1) year starting December 8th, 2019 through December 6th, 2020. The Maintenance Engineer for this agreement is Mr. Ivanohe Hernandez, P.E. He can be reached at (305) 640-7165.

The Town may invoice the Department after the end of each quarter according to the schedule below:

1st Quarter	December 8 th , 2019 thru March 6 th , 2020
2nd Quarter	March 7 th , 2020 thru June 6 th , 2020
3rd Quarter	June 7 th , 2020 thru September 6 th , 2020
4th Quarter	September 7 th , 2020 thru December 6 th , 2020

If you have any questions concerning the agreement, please contact me at telephone number (305) 470-5354.

Sincerely,

Renato Marrero, P.E. District Maintenance Engineer

cc: L. Salazar, K. Al-Said, I. Hernandez, R. Kenny, D. Goodwin, D. Kong, D6-CFM

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Contract No.: ASF58	Renewal: (1st, 2nd, etc.) <u>1st</u>
Financial Project No(s).: <u>252354-4-78-01</u>	
County(ies): <u>Miami-Dade</u>	
This Agreement made and entered into this	day of,, by and between the State of
Florida Department of Transportation, hereinafter ca	lled "Department", and <u>Town of Golden Beach, 1 Golden Beach Drive,</u>
<u>Golden Beach, Florida 33160</u> hereinafter called "Co	ntractor".

WITNESSETH:

	19
(This date to be entered by DOT only) entered into an Agreement whereby the Department retained the Contractor to perform <u>maintenance of all turf and</u>	
landscape areas within the right-of-way on the State Roads described in "Exhibit A" of the original contract	; and

WHEREAS, said Agreement has a renewal option which provides for a renewal if mutually agreed to by both parties and subject to the same terms and conditions of the original Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, this Agreement witnesseth that for and in consideration of the mutual benefits to flow each to the other, the parties agree to a renewal of said original Agreement for a period beginning the $\underline{7}$ day of <u>December</u>, <u>2020</u> and ending the <u>6</u> day of <u>December</u>, <u>2021</u> at a cost of $\underline{313,972.00}$.

All terms and conditions of said original Agreement shall remain in force and effect for this renewal.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized officers on the day, month, and year set forth above.

Town of Golden Beach				STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Name of Contractor				
Contractor Name and Title			_	BY: District Secretary or Designee (Signature)
BY:			_	Title:
Authorized Signature				
			(SEAL)	Legal:
Name of Surety				-
				Fiscal:
City	State			Approval as to Availability of Funds
By: Florida Licensed Insurance Agent or		Date	_	
Attorney-In-Fact (Signature)				
Countersigned:	-			
Florida Licensed Insuran	ce Agent	Date		



TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH

One Golden Beach Drive Golden Beach, FL 33160

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 18, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor Glenn Singer & Town Council Members

Alexander Diaz.

Town Manager

Item Number:

Subject: Resolution No. 2684.20 – Renewing the agreements for Dental Insurance and Vision Coverage to Guardian Insurance and Humana with Sapoznik Insurance as the agent of record

Allo B)

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Town Council adopt the attached Resolution No. 2684.20 as presented.

Background:

From:

I recommend that Sapoznik Insurance be renewed as the agent of record for vision coverage and dental coverage. The resolution renews the following: dental coverage to Guardian Insurance, and vision coverage to Humana.

The Town has received a rate pass for both the vision coverage and dental insurance.

Dental (Guardian) a rate pass, no increase from last fiscal year. Vision (Humana Vision 130) a rate pass, no increase from last fiscal year.

Fiscal Impact:

No rate increase from what the Town's current monthly rates are for dental and vision insurance.

TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. 2684.20

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, RENEWING THE AGREEMENTS FOR A DENTAL INSURANCE AND A VISION INSURANCE PLAN FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH EMPLOYEES AND ELIGIBLE DEPENDENTS; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town Council by Resolution 1868.07 awarded to each of Guardian Insurance and Humana Insurance, the lowest responsible bidders, a one year contract with two (2) one-year renewal options (the "Contracts"), to provide dental and vision insurance benefits to Town employees and their eligible dependents; and

WHEREAS, that renewal option expired on September 30, 2010 and the Town

has granted annual extensions since; and

WHEREAS, the Town finds that the renewal rates continue to provide a more

competitive comprehensive option than a bid option;

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to renew its vision and dental insurance coverage

under each of the Contracts; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that renewal of the Contracts is in the best interest of the Town.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals Adopted. Each of the above recitals are hereby adopted, confirmed and incorporated herein.

<u>Section 2.</u> <u>Proposal Accepted.</u> The proposals to renew the Contracts with Guardian Insurance and Humana, as described and set forth in the Agenda Item Report attached hereto and incorporated herein, and are hereby accepted.

<u>Section 3.</u> <u>Implementation</u>. The Mayor and Town Manager are hereby authorized to take any and all action necessary to implement this Resolution in accordance with its terms and conditions including, but not limited to, the designation of a new agent of record.

Section 4. Effective Date. That this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon approval of the Town Council.

Sponsored by the **Town Administration**.

The Motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered by _____, seconded

by _____, and on roll call the following vote ensued:

Mayor Glenn Singer Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein Councilmember Judy Lusskin Councilmember Jaime Mendal Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Golden Beach,

Florida, this <u>18th</u> day of <u>August</u>, 2020.

ATTEST:

MAYOR GLENN SINGER

LISSETTE PEREZ TOWN CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

STEPHEN J. HELFMAN TOWN ATTORNEY



LISSETTE PEREZ HR MANAGER TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH 1 GOLDEN BEACH DR GOLDEN BEACH, FL 33160 SAPOZNIK INS AGENCY 1100 NE 163RD STREET 2ND FLOOR N. MIAMI BEACH, FL 33162

Your Guardian employee benefits renewal package is enclosed

As a valued Guardian customer, we appreciate your business and hope that you are fully satisfied with our plan offerings and services. Our commitment is to continue providing high-quality plans while placing your benefit needs first.

If you have questions about your renewal package or would like information about other benefits available for your employees, we can assist you. Contact your insurance broker or contact your Guardian Group Sales office at:

1511 N. West Shore Blvd., Tampa, Florida, 33607, (813) 472-6080.



It's renewal time!

Guardian is here to help.

RENEWAL INFORMATION FOR

TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH GROUP PLAN # 00429802

RENEWAL PERIOD October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021



guardiananytime.com The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America, New York, NY.

What you'll find in this package

RENEWAL INFORMATION	PAGE
College Tuition Benefit Annual Statement	1
Renewal Rates At-a-Glance	2
Current Plan Benefit Summaries By Product	3
Additional Information on your Guardian coverage	Appendix

Please note:

If your group plan includes multiple lines of coverage, a multi-line discount was used in the pricing. If you do not wish to renew all lines of coverage, please contact us for revised pricing.



guardiananytime.com The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America, New York, NY.

8 Guardian[®]



College Tuition Benefit Rewards Statement as of 06/16/2020

Plan Number: 00429802 Plan Name: TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH Current Lines of Coverage with CTB: Dental Total Estimated Potential Accumulated Rewards For All Lines of Coverage: \$519,500

Dear Planholder,

Thank you for being a valued Guardian customer. This statement provides a snapshot of the total College Tuition Benefit points earned by your members as a result of being enrolled in one or more of the coverages listed above.

To make sure points are credited to members, they can visit **guardian.collegetuitionbenefit.com** and register using the following information:

User ID: Plan number, Password: Guardian

College Tuition Benefit is a great way to help your employees save money on college education. One Tuition Reward = \$1 in tuition reduction and can be used at over 400 private college and universities nationwide. The example below demonstrates how Tuition Rewards build up each year.



Important deadlines for members:

- Students must be added to the program by August 24 the year he/she starts grade 11
- The last day members can transfer earned rewards to a student **is August 24** of the year he/she starts grade 12

If you have any questions, contact your Guardian Group Sales Representative or send your questions via email to <u>support@ collegetuitionbenefit.com</u>. For general information about the College Tuition Benefit program go to <u>quardian.collegetuitionbenefit.com</u>.

Sincerely,

The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America

College Tuition Benefit is a tuition reduction program. This program is currently part of your employee benefit package and addresses a top employee concern -- saving for college. The service is \$0.45 per employee per month for each coverage accumulating the College Tuition Benefit. (i.e. except for Guardian Davis Vision plan Rewards, which are offered by Davis Vision) This is not a separate line item charge for you, but instead reflected in the total premium billed (though not an insurance charge). The Tuition Rewards program is provided by SAGE CTB, LLC. Guardian does not provide any services related to this program. SAGE CTB, LLC is not a subsidiary or an affiliate of Guardian. Guardian reserves the right to discontinue the College Tuition Benefit program at any time without notice. The College Tuition Benefit is not an insurance benefit and may not be available in all states. 2018-70400 (Exp. 11/20)

Renewal Rates At-a-Glance

This plan is currently offered for Insurance Class 1					
DENTAL PLAN RATES - VALUE O1					
		CUR	RENT	RENE	EWAL
Tier	Enrolled Employees	Monthly Rate	Annual Premium	Monthly Rate	Annual Premium
EE	29	\$46.94	\$16,335	\$46.94	\$16,335
EE & SP	9	\$103.90	\$11,221	\$103.90	\$11,221
EE & CH	7	\$132.95	\$11,168	\$132.95	\$11,168
FAMILY	9	\$177.90	\$19,213	\$177.90	\$19,213
TOTAL	54		\$57,937		\$57,937

If you have determined that your group is subject to ACA regulations which require you to include pediatric dental essential health benefits, Guardian can provide these benefits. Please contact your local Sales Office for options.

Current Plan Benefits Summaries

CONTRACT TYPE: DENTAL GUARD 2000

This plan is currently offered for Insurance Class 1

PLAN BENEFITS SUMMARY				
	In-Network	Out-of-Network		
Network	DentalGuard Preferred	None		
Coinsurance				
Preventive	100%	100%		
Basic	100%	80%		
Major	60%	50%		
Deductible	\$25	\$50		
Waived for preventive?	Yes	No		
Claim Payment Basis	Fee Schedule	Fee Schedule		
Maximum	\$1,500	\$1,500		
Orthodontia	Included			
Lifetime Maximum	\$1,000			
Coinsurance	50%			
Maximum Rollover				
Threshold	\$70	00		
Rollover Amount	\$35	50		
In-network only rollover	\$500			
Max Rollover Limit	\$1,2	250		
Dependent Age Limit	20/2	26		

Plan information is for illustrative purposes only. Please consult plan contract for specific benefit levels.

Additional **Dental Information**

DENTAL MAXIMUM ROLLOVER SUMMARY					
	For Benefit Year Ending: 12/31/2020				
ROLLOVER ACCOUNT SIZE	NUMBER OF QUALIFYING EMPLOYEES & DEPENDENTS	TOTAL ACCOUNT VALUE			
\$0	25	\$0.00			
\$1 - \$250	0	\$0.00			
\$251 - \$500	16	\$7,461.20			
\$501 - \$750	2	\$1,201.20			
\$751 - \$1,000	8	\$7,700.00			
Over \$1,000	37	\$45,597.80			
TOTAL	63	\$61,960.20			

14 of your Employees and Dependents currently are eligible for additional Maximum Rollover amounts.

"Benefit Year" refers to the 12-month period during which charges are counted toward this plan's annual maximum.

"Number of Qualifying Employees and Dependents" reflects information available at the time this renewal package was issued. Additional claims will affect this count.

"Eligibility for additional rollover amounts reflects information available at the time this renewal package was issued. Additional claims will affect the eligibility for additional rollover amounts"

Rollover amounts earned in the benefit year ending 12/31/2020 are applied to the members Maximum Rollover Account for use starting the next benefit year.

Additional information on your Guardian coverage



10 Hudson Yards New York, NY 10001 guardianlife.com

We recognize the significant impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on your business and your employees' ability to receive dental care.

To help you manage costs and provide affordable, uninterrupted access to dental care, Guardian planholders with dental and vision benefits will be provided the following support at renewal:

Financial assistance for dental and vision plans*

You can elect to receive a one-month premium credit for your fully-insured Guardian dental and vision plans or an extended rate guarantee on dental and vision.

- **Premium credit** the premium credit will be applied to your second bill after your renewal, beginning with September 2020 renewals through August 2021.
- Rate guarantee you may choose a two-year rate guarantee on both products.**

Contact your broker to discuss the option that best suits your needs. To make your election, please send an email to COVID19@glic.com indicating your choice and include your name, your company name and plan number. Elections must be submitted 30 days prior to your renewal effective date.

Dental benefit enhancements offering more savings and flexibility for members*

Guardian is also enhancing your dental benefits through the end of 2021 to offer more savings and flexibility to members, without any impact to premium or fees.

- Enhancing frequency limits
 - We have enhanced frequency limits on cleanings, exams, and fluoride treatments (if applicable) to a minimum of two per calendar year.
 - This will be applied from July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021.
- Enhancement for dental plans with Maximum Rollover
 - For the remainder of 2020, members with Maximum Rollover will no longer have a requirement to submit a claim in order to rollover funds into their account.
 - Effective January 1, 2021, members will have \$100 added to their Maximum Rollover Account so they have more funds to spend on care.

We are committed to delivering the support you need to provide quality benefits to your employees that promote good oral health. We thank you for the trust you place in Guardian.

DentalGuard and Vision Insurance are underwritten and issued by The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America, New York, NY. Products are not available in all states. Policy limitations and exclusions apply. Optional riders and/or features may incur additional costs. Plan documents are the final arbiter of coverage. Policy Form # GP-1-DG2000, et al., GP-1-DEN-16, GP-1-GVSN-17, GUARDIAN® is a registered trademark of The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America, New York, NY. © Copyright 2020 The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America 2020-103474 (5/21)

^{*}Availability of financial assistance and dental benefit enhancements may vary by state. California Knox-Keene plans are excluded.

^{**} Customers in an existing rate guarantee will receive the premium credit option. Rate guarantee not available for groups with less than 51 lives in Florida.



From:

TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH

One Golden Beach Drive Golden Beach, FL 33160

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 18, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor Glenn Singer & Town Council Members

Alexander Diaz.

Town Manager

Item Number:

Subject: Resolution No. 2685.20 - Approving an Interlocal Agreement for Federally-Funded Subaward with Miami-Dade County for the Reimbursement of Expenses Incurred due to COVID-19, Pursuant to the CARES Act.

Allo B)

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Town Council adopt the attached Resolution No. 2685.20 as presented.

Background:

When Congress approved the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act") it distributed funds to governmental agencies with a population of over 500,000. In South Florida over \$400-millon was awarded to Miami-Dade County.

After months of negotiations the County has set aside funding to assist municipalities with Covid-19 related expenses. To access these funds Miami-Dade is requiring the execution of an Interlocal Agreement.

We are recommending that you allow for the Mayor, Attorney and I to execute the final agreed to MOU (the one attached may have some changes) allowing the Town to seek funds.

Fiscal Impact:

The Town has an excess of \$300,000 in requests. It is unknown the value Miami-Dade will provide.

TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA

RESOLUTION NO. 2685.20

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED SUBAWARD WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY FOR THE REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES INCURRED DUE TO THE NOVEL CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 (COVID-19) PURSUANT TO THE CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES) ACT; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, the Miami Dade County Mayor issued a

Declaration of State of Emergency concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019

("COVID-19") pandemic and subsequently issued various emergency orders to mitigate

and slow the spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, President Donald J. Trump issued a proclamation

declaring a nationwide emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2020, President Trump signed the Coronavirus Aid,

Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act (the "CARES Act") into law; and

WHEREAS, among other things, the CARES Act includes a \$150 Billion Coronavirus Relief Fund for local governments to cover expenses that are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to COVID-19, were not included in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 for the State or local government, and were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida was allocated \$8.328 billion from the Coronavirus Relief Fund, of which Miami-Dade County, Florida (the "County") received \$474 million; and

WHEREAS, at the August 4, 2020 Special Meeting of the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners (the "Board"), the Board allocated a total of not-to-exceed \$100,000,000 in CARES Act funds to the municipalities in the County as follows: \$75,000,000 for reimbursement of FEMA local match eligible expenditures as well as CARES Act eligible governmental operations expenditures that are not FEMA reimbursable, and \$25,000,000 for municipal programmatic proposals subject to approval in advance by the Board; and

WHEREAS, the Town has closely tracked expenses and applied for reimbursement of eligible costs incurred by the Town associated with the COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to enter into an Interlocal Agreement for Federally-Funded Subaward (the "Agreement") with the County for the reimbursement of eligible expenses related to the COVID-19 pandemic under the CARES Act in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and welfare of the residents of the Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GOLDEN BEACH, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. That each of the above-stated recitals are hereby adopted, confirmed, and incorporated herein.

Section 2. Approval. That the Town Council approves the Agreement with the County in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A."

Section 3. Authorization. That the Town Council hereby authorizes the Town Manager to execute the Agreement with the County, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A," with such further revisions or modifications as may be acceptable to the Town Manager and the Town Attorney, and to execute any subsequent amendments or related documents necessary to implement the Agreement, subject to the approval of the Town Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

The Motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered by _____,

seconded by ______ and on roll call the following vote ensued:

Mayor Glenn Singer	
Vice Mayor Bernard Einstein	
Councilmember Jaime Mendal	
Councilmember Judy Lusskin	
Councilmember Kenneth Bernstein	
Councilmember Jaime Mendal Councilmember Judy Lusskin	

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Golden Beach,

Florida, this <u>18th</u> day of <u>August</u>, 2020.

ATTEST:

MAYOR GLENN SINGER

LISSETTE PEREZ TOWN CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

STEPHEN J. HELFMAN TOWN ATTORNEY

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED SUBAWARD

This Interlocal Agreement (the "Agreement") entered into this ____ day of _____ 2020, by and between Miami-Dade County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (the "County"), and _____, a municipal corporation located within the geographic boundaries of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the "Municipality", and together with the County, the "Parties").

For purposes of this Agreement, the County serves as the Pass-through entity for a Federal Award, and the Municipality serves as the Sub-Recipient of a Subaward.

WHEREAS, in March 2020, the United States Congress passed, and President Donald Trump signed into law, H.R. 748, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the "CARES Act"); and

WHEREAS, the CARES Act is a \$2 trillion Federal stimulus package which provided, among other things:

- one-time checks of \$1,200 to Americans earning a certain income;
- \$349 billion in loans to small businesses;
- \$17 billion of assistance to companies deemed crucial to national security;
- grants of \$25 billion for passenger air carriers, \$4 billion for air-cargo carriers, and \$3 billion for certain contractors; and
- a \$150 billion Coronavirus Relief Fund ("CRF") for local governments; and

WHEREAS, the CARES Act requires that payments to local governments from the CRF only be used to cover expenses that:

- are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to Coronavirus Disease 2019 ("COVID-19");
- were not included in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 for the State or local government; and
- were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida was allocated \$8.328 billion from the CRF, of which the County received \$474 million; and

WHEREAS, the United States Department of the Treasury (the "Treasury") has released guidance for State, territorial, local and Tribal governments pertaining to the CRF ("CRF Guidance"), which was most recently updated on June 30, 2020, and a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, the Treasury has also released Frequently Asked Questions pertaining to the CRF ("CRF FAQ"), which was most recently updated on July 8, 2020, and a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2 and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, the CRF FAQ provides that CRF payments made by the Treasury to State, territorial, local, and Tribal governments are considered "other financial assistance" under 2 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) § 200.40; and

WHEREAS, the CRF FAQ further provides that a county receiving CRF payments may, but is not required to, transfer CRF funds to smaller cities within the county's borders, provided that the transferred funds are used by the cities for eligible expenditures under Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act as implemented in the CRF Guidance; and

WHEREAS, 2 C.F.R. §200.92 states that a "subaward may be provided through any form of legal Agreement, including an Agreement that the County considers a contract"; and

WHEREAS, at the August 4, 2020 Special Meeting of the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners (the "Board"), the Board allocated a total of not-to-exceed \$100,000,000 in CARES Act funds to the municipalities in the County as follows: \$75,000,000 for reimbursement of FEMA local match eligible expenditures as well as CARES Act eligible governmental operations expenditures that are not FEMA reimbursable, and \$25,000,000 for municipal programmatic proposals subject to approval in advance by the Board; and

WHEREAS, the primary purpose of this Agreement is to ensure the effective and timely dissemination of CRF dollars to reimburse the Municipality for such eligible expenditures, as permitted by Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act as implemented in the CRF Guidance and FAQ, and as authorized by the Board; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is not a legal requirement of the Treasury, but rather is a voluntary Agreement to provide funding to the Municipality if all conditions are met to enable the County to remain in compliance with the Treasury's Office of Inspector General's memoranda and subsequent addenda regarding CRF Monitoring, Reporting and Record Retention Requirements (the "Treasury OIG Memoranda"), copies of which are attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 3 and 3-1, and incorporated herein,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the Parties agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

- A. "Contractor" shall mean any entity, public or private, providing services as described in this Agreement.
- B. "Designation of Authority" shall have the meaning set forth in Articles V and VII of this Agreement.
- C. "Events of Default" shall have the meaning set forth in Article XVIII of this Agreement.
- D. "Federal Award" shall mean Federal financial assistance that a non-Federal entity receives directly from a Federal Awarding Agency or indirectly from a Pass-through entity per 2 C.F.R. §200.38.
- E. "FEMA" shall mean the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- F. "Funds" shall mean any CARES Act CRF funds advanced or transferred to the Municipality for reimbursement of eligible expenditures in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
- G. "Pass-through entity" shall mean a non-Federal entity that provides a subaward to a Sub-Recipient to carry out part of a Federal program per 2 C.F.R. §200.74.
- H. "Representative" shall refer to the individual set forth in Article V of this Agreement authorized by the Municipality to act on behalf of the Municipality.
- I. "Request for Reimbursement" shall have the meaning set forth in Article VII of this Agreement.
- J. "Subaward" shall mean an award provided by a Pass-through entity to a Sub-Recipient for the Sub-Recipient to carry out part of a Federal Award received by the Pass-through entity per 2 C.F.R. §200.93.
- K. "Sub-Recipient" shall mean a non-Federal entity, such as a municipality, that receives a subaward from a Pass-through entity to carry out part of a Federal program per 2 C.F.R. §200.93.

SUBAWARD INFORMATION

The following Agreement information is provided pursuant to 2 C.F.R. §200.331(a)(1):

Sub-Recipient's name:	
Sub-Recipient's unique entity identifier:	
Federal Award Date:	March 13, 2020
Name of Federal Awarding Agency:	U.S. Treasury Department
Name of Pass-through entity:	Miami-Dade County
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number and Name:	21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund

ARTICLE I REPRESENTATIONS

A. The Municipality represents that it is fully qualified and eligible to receive the Funds.

B. The Municipality certifies that it has the legal authority to receive the Funds under this Agreement and that its governing body has authorized the execution and acceptance of this Agreement. The Municipality also certifies that the undersigned person has the authority to legally execute and bind the Municipality to the terms of this Agreement.

C. The Municipality, by its decision to receive the Funds, bears the ultimate responsibility for ensuring compliance with all applicable State and Federal laws, regulations and policies, and bears the ultimate consequences of any adverse decisions rendered by the County, the Federal Awarding Agency, or any other Federal agencies with audit, regulatory, or enforcement authority.

D. The County received the Funds from the Federal government, and the County has the authority to transfer such Funds to the Municipality under the terms and conditions outlined herein.

E. The County, as the Pass-through entity for the Funds, reserves the right to demand that the Municipality comply with all applicable County, State and Federal laws, regulations and policies and take any and all other actions necessary to ensure that the Funds are used in accordance with Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act as implemented in the CRF Guidance.

ARTICLE II RESPONSIBILITIES

A. The Parties to this Agreement shall work together in a cooperative and coordinated effort, and in such a manner and fashion to ensure the Funds are utilized most effectively and efficiently to respond to and recover from COVID-19.

B. Both the County and the Municipality are expected to remain in compliance with the CRF Guidance, the CRF FAQ, and the Treasury OIG Memoranda as outlined in Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 3-1 and as may be amended by the Treasury from time to time. The County's reimbursement of an expenditure will be based on the information available at that time. If further clarification from the Treasury later determines such expenditure to be ineligible, the Municipality shall return any Funds received for such expenditure to the County in accordance with the provisions of Article X of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III TERMS OF AGREEMENT

A. This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by both Parties and shall end upon formal notification by the Treasury or its designee that the use of all Funds has been accounted for and accepted, unless terminated earlier as specified elsewhere in this Agreement.

B. The County may terminate this Agreement for cause after seven (7) days written notice. Cause may include, but is not limited to: Funds not being expended in a reasonably timely manner, misuse of Funds, fraud or misrepresentation, lack of compliance with applicable rules, laws and regulations, and refusal by the Municipality to permit public access to any document, paper, letter, or other material subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, as amended. Upon such termination, the Municipality shall, within thirty (30) days, return all unexpended Funds to the County.

C. The Parties may jointly agree to terminate this Agreement for their mutual convenience through a written amendment of this Agreement.

D. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, and upon the Municipality's receipt of the notice of termination, the Municipality will not incur new expenditures with the expectation of such expenditures being reimbursed with Funds by the County.

ARTICLE IV LAWS, RULES, REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

Performance under this Agreement is subject to Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the CARES Act. Fund payments are subject to the following requirements in the Uniform Guidance (2 C.F.R. Part 200): 2 CFR §200.303 regarding Internal Controls, 2 CFR §§200.330 through 200.332 regarding Sub-Recipient Monitoring and Management, and Subpart F regarding Audit Requirements. Pursuant to the CRF Guidance (Exhibit 1), the CARES Act provides that payments from the Fund may only be used to cover costs that:

A. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to COVID-19;

B. were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or local government; and

C. were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020.

ARTICLE V CONTACTS

The County's Contract Manager shall be responsible for enforcing performance of this Agreement's terms and conditions and shall serve as the County's liaison with the Municipality. As part of his/her duties, the Contract Manager for the County shall monitor, review, and document all activities and expenditures for which the Municipality requests reimbursement.

A. The County's Contract Manager for this Agreement is:

Name:	Barbara Gomez, CPA
Title:	Deputy Finance Director, Miami-Dade County Finance Department
Address:	111 N.W. 1 st Street, 25 th Floor
	Miami, Florida 33128-1900
Telephone:	(305) 375-5245
Email:	Barbara.Gomez@miamidade.gov

B. The name and address of the Representative of the Municipality ("Representative") responsible for the administration of this Agreement is:

Name:	
Title:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
Email:	

C. In the event that different representatives or addresses are designated by either Party after execution of this Agreement, notice of the name, title, and address of the new representative will be provided to the other Party in writing via letter or electronic mail. It is the Municipality's responsibility to authorize its users in the County's On-Line Portal (to be provided). Only the Authorized or Primary Agents identified in Attachment A to this Agreement ("Designation of Authority") may authorize the addition or removal of agency users.

ARTICLE VI ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

A. The Municipality may seek reimbursement under this Agreement for the following eligible expenditures incurred during the period beginning March 1, 2020 and ending December 30, 2020:

- 1. FEMA Public Assistance (PA) local match eligible expenditures;
- 2. CRF eligible governmental operations expenditures that are not FEMA reimbursable; and
- 3. Expenditures for CRF eligible economic support and assistance programs that have been approved in advance by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners.

B. Whenever eligible, the Municipality will seek FEMA reimbursement rather than CRF reimbursement since the CRF can be used more readily to support the public's economic needs due to the impacts of COVID-19.

C. Subject to the availability of Funds, the County will reimburse the Municipality for the FEMA PA local match (currently 12.5 percent) upon receipt of documentation of the Municipality's application to FEMA for reimbursement; provided, however, that if any expenditures by the Municipality are denied reimbursement by FEMA, the Municipality shall return to the County any Funds received for the FEMA PA local match for such expenditures in accordance with the provisions of Article X of this Agreement.

D. CRF eligible governmental operations expenditures that are not FEMA reimbursable include the following:

- Personnel Costs Payroll expenses for employees whose service are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency such as:
 - a. Park Attendant performing duties to enforce compliance with public health orders
 - b. Unbudgeted overtime to perform functions to mitigate or respond to COVID-19 health emergency
- 2. Medical Expenses Examples:
 - a. COVID-19 testing
 - b. COVID-19 tracing
 - c. Medical responses, including emergency transportation
- 3. Public Health Examples:
 - a. Communication and enforcement of local health orders
 - Acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, such as sanitizing products, personal protection equipment for County employees and workers in connection with COVID-19 public health emergency
 - c. Disinfection of public areas and other facilities
 - d. Public Safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19
 Quarantine Individuals
- 4. Actions to Facilitate Compliance Expenses Examples:
 - a. Food deliveries to residents including senior citizens and other vulnerable populations, to enable compliance with public health precautions
 - b. Improvements to telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with public health precautions
 - c. Provide paid sick, family, and medical leave to public employees to enable compliance with public health precautions
- Miscellaneous Expenditures Any other COVID-19 related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that satisfy the Fund's eligibility criteria and that are not FEMA reimbursable.

E. Requests for Reimbursement by the Municipality for (1) CRF eligible governmental operations expenditures that are not FEMA reimbursable, and (2) expenditures for CRF eligible economic support and assistance programs that have been approved in advance by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners, shall be governed by the requirements and procedures set forth in Article VI(F) and (G) below.

F. Prior to the disbursement of any Funds, the Municipality shall provide all documentation of expenditures for which reimbursement is requested to the County via the County's On-line Portal. The County will then review said documentation for sufficiency and costs for eligibility, and if the County determines that the expenditures are eligible for reimbursement, will reimburse the Municipality for such eligible expenditures in an expedited manner, subject to the availability of Funds. If the County requires additional documentation to determine eligibility, the Municipality shall timely provide such documentation upon written request from the County. If the County determines that the expenditures are not eligible for reimbursement, then no Funds will be disbursed to the Municipality for said expenditures.

G. If any expenditure for which the Municipality received Funds for reimbursement is subsequently determined not to be an eligible expenditure under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act as implemented in the CRF Guidance and CRF FAQ, the Municipality shall return any Funds received from the County for such expenditure to the County in accordance with the provisions of Article X of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII REQUESTS FOR REIMBURSEMENT

The County, subject to availability of Funds, will provide Funds on a cost reimbursement basis to the Municipality for eligible expenditures approved by the County.

A. Any request for reimbursement by Municipality under this Agreement (a "Request for Reimbursement") must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally bind the Municipality, which reads as follows: "By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the Report is true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in this Agreement".

B. The Municipality must complete Attachment A by designating at least three agents to execute any Requests for Reimbursement, certifications, changes to contacts, or other necessary documentation on behalf of the Municipality. Attachment A must be completed electronically and submitted via email to the County Contract Manager (see Article V).

C. The County will review all Requests for Reimbursement and only release Funds for eligible, documented expenditures.

D. The County reserves the right to require on an ongoing basis, including after the disbursement of Funds, any additional certifications and documentation it deems necessary to continue to verify the eligibility of expenditures for which the Municipality received Funds for reimbursement.

ARTICLE VIII PROCUREMENT

A. The Municipality shall ensure that any procurement involving Funds authorized by the Agreement complies with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. For this event, the County and funding Federal Agency recognize that noncompetitive procurements may be necessary to save lives, to protect property and public health and to ensure public safety, as well as to lessen or avert the threat of a catastrophe. The President's unprecedented Nationwide Emergency Declaration and the Secretary of Health and Human Services' (HHS) declaration of a Public Health Emergency for COVID-19 establish that exigent and emergency circumstances currently exist. For the duration of the Public Health Emergency, which began January 27, 2020 as determined by HHS, local governments, tribal governments, nonprofits, and other non-state entities may proceed with new and existing noncompetitively procured contracts in order to protect property and public health and safety, or to lessen or avert the threats created by emergency situations for (1) emergency protective measures and (2) to respond to or address COVID-19.

B. If the Municipality contracts with any contractor or vendor for performance of any portion of the work required under this Agreement, the Municipality must incorporate into its contract with such contractor or vendor an indemnification clause holding the Federal Government, its employees and/or their contractors, the County, its employees and/or their contractors, and the Municipality and its employees and/or their contractors harmless from liability to third parties for claims asserted under such contract.

ARTICLE IX PAYMENTS

A. Requests for Reimbursement serve as invoices and shall include the supporting documentation for all costs of the project, services or expenditures in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof. The final Request for Reimbursement shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the expiration of this Agreement.

B. If Funds are not available to satisfy a Request for Reimbursement under this Agreement, as a result of action by the United States Congress, the Federal Office of Management and Budget, the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners, the County Chief Financial Officer, or under Article X (B) of this Agreement, all obligations on the part of the County to make any further payment of Funds shall terminate, and the Municipality shall submit its final report within thirty (30) days of receiving notice from the County.

C. If the Municipality separately invests amounts received under this Agreement, the interest earnings or other proceeds must be used to cover expenditures incurred in accordance with Section 601(d) of the Social Security Act and the CRF Guidance (Exhibit 1). If the Municipality deposits Fund payments in its General Accounts, it may use the CRF dollars to meet immediate cash management needs provided that the full amount of the payment is used to cover necessary expenditures. Fund payments are not subject to the Cash Management Improvement Act of 1990, as amended.

ARTICLE X REPAYMENT OF FUNDS

A. All returns or repayments of Funds due to the County under this Agreement are due no later than thirty (30) days from the date of written notification by the County that such Funds are due, and shall be made payable to the order of "Miami-Dade County" and be mailed directly to the Contract Manager (as stipulated in Article V.

B. The Municipality agrees that the County may withhold Funds otherwise payable to the Municipality upon a determination by the County or the Federal Awarding Agency that Funds exceeding eligible expenditures have been disbursed to the Municipality pursuant to this Agreement.

C. The Municipality understands and agrees that the County may withhold or offset Funds otherwise payable to the Municipality until the return or repayment of any Funds due to the County under this Agreement is satisfied.

ARTICLE XI RECORDS

A. The Federal Awarding Agency, Inspectors General, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the County, or any of the County authorized representatives, (e.g. the Inspector General of the County, the Commission Auditor, Audit and Management Services Department), shall enjoy the right of access to any documents, financial statements, papers, or other records of the Municipality which are pertinent to this Agreement, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right of access also includes timely and reasonable access to the Municipality's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents.

B. As required by the County's record retention requirements (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes) and by the Treasury OIG Memoranda (Exhibits 3 and 3-1), the Municipality shall retain sufficient records to show its compliance with the terms of this Agreement, as well as the compliance of all subcontractors or consultants paid from Funds under this Agreement, for a period of five (5) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report.

C. The Municipality shall retain financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records including electronic storage media pertinent to its use of Funds for a period of five (5) years after the last disbursement of Funds by the County. If any litigation or audit is initiated, or claim made, before the expiration of the five-year period, the records shall be retained until the litigation, audit, or claim has been resolved.

D. As required by 2 C.F.R. §200.303, the Municipality shall take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personal identifiable information and other information the Federal Awarding Agency or the County designates as sensitive or the Municipality considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, State, Local, and Tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

E. The Municipality shall maintain all records for the Municipality and for all subcontractors or consultants to be paid from Funds provided under this Agreement, including documentation of all program costs, in a form sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements and objectives of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XII REPORTS

The Municipality shall provide the County with quarterly reports and any other information that may be required in Exhibits 3 and 3-1 and any subsequent Addenda thereto.

ARTICLE XIII MONITORING

A. The County shall have the right to monitor the performance of the Municipality under this Agreement, as well as that of its subcontractors and/or consultants who are paid from Funds provided under this Agreement.

B. In addition to reviews of audits, monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, onsite visits by County staff, desk reviews and/or other procedures. The Municipality agrees to cooperate with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the County.

ARTICLE XIV AUDITS

A. The Municipality shall comply with the audit requirements contained in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F.

B. In accounting for the receipt and expenditure of Funds under this Agreement, the Municipality shall follow Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP"). As defined by 2 C.F.R. §200.49, GAAP "has the meaning specified in accounting standards issued by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)."

C. As per this Agreement, audits conducted under 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F shall be performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards ("GAGAS") as issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

 If an audit shows that any Funds disbursed to the Municipality were not used by the Municipality in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Municipality shall return said Funds to the County in accordance with the provisions of Article X of this Agreement.

- 2. The Municipality shall have all audits completed by an independent auditor, which is defined in section 215.97(2)(i), Florida Statutes, as "an independent certified public accountant licensed under chapter 473." The independent auditor shall state that the audit complied with the applicable provisions noted above. The audit must be received by the County no later than nine (9) months from the end of the Municipality's fiscal year.
- 3. The Municipality shall send copies of the audit and any Management Letters issued by the auditor to the County's Contract Manager.

ARTICLE XV MANDATED CONDITIONS

A. Execution of this Agreement constitutes a certification that the Municipality will comply with all the requirements imposed by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d, et. seq.). Pursuant to 44 C.F.R. §§ 7 and 16, and 44 C.F.R. § 206.11, the Municipality must undertake an active program of nondiscrimination in its administration of disaster assistance under this Agreement.

B. The Municipality agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination by public and private entities on the basis of disability in employment, public accommodations, transportation, State and Local government services, and telecommunications.

C. The Municipality shall require that the following certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements)—that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose to the best of their knowledge and belief that they:

- Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by a Federal department or agency;
- 2. Have not, within a five (5)-year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or Local) transaction or contract under public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
- 3. Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or Local); and

4. Have not, within a five (5)-year period preceding this Agreement, had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or Local) terminated for cause or default.

If the Municipality is unable to obtain and provide such certification, then the Municipality shall attach an explanation to this Agreement as to why not.

ARTICLE XVI LOBBYING PROHIBITION

The Municipality certifies, by its Representative's signature to this Agreement, that to the best of his or her knowledge and belief:

A. No Funds received by Municipality under this Agreement have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Municipality, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

B. If any monies, other than Funds received by Municipality under this Agreement, have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the Municipality shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

C. The Municipality shall require that this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all such sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

D. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

ARTICLE XVII LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

The Municipality is solely responsible to the parties it deals with in carrying out the terms of this Agreement. To the extent and within the limitations of section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as amended, the Municipality shall be responsible for and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless and defend the County and its boards, commissions, agencies, officers and employees from and against all third party claims, demands and causes of actions, of any nature whatsoever, directly resulting from the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of the Municipality, its officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors in its performance under this

Agreement. To the extent and within the limitations of section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as amended, the Municipality shall pay all claims and losses in connection therewith and, at the election of the County, shall investigate and defend, or pay for the defense of, all claims, suits or actions of any kind or nature in the name of the County, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay all costs, judgments, and attorney's fees which may issue thereon. The Municipality expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this Agreement or otherwise provided by the Municipality shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the County or its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities as herein provided. For purposes of this Agreement, Municipality agrees that it is not an agent of the County. Nothing herein shall be construed as consent by the County to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of any contract.

ARTICLE XVIII EVENTS OF DEFAULT

If any of the following events occur ("Events of Default"), all obligations on the part of the County to make further payment of Funds shall terminate and the County has the option to exercise any of its remedies as set forth in Article XIX:

A. Any warranty or representation made by the Municipality in this Agreement is or becomes false or misleading in any respect.

B. The Municipality fails or is unable or unwilling to perform and complete on time any of its obligations under this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIX REMEDIES

If an Event of Default occurs, then the County shall timely provide written notice of the Event of Default to the Municipality. If the Municipality fails to cure the Event of Default within seven (7) days after receipt of such notice from the County, the County may exercise any one or more of the following remedies, either concurrently or consecutively:

A. Terminate this Agreement, provided that the Municipality is given at least seven (7) days prior written notice of the termination.

B. Withhold or suspend payment of all or any part of a Request for Reimbursement.

C. Require that the Municipality return to the County any Funds used for ineligible purposes.

D. Exercise any other rights or remedies which may be available under law.

No delay or omission to exercise any right, power, or remedy accruing to the County upon breach or violation by the Municipality under this Agreement, shall impair any such right, power or remedy of the County; nor shall such delay or omission be construed as a waiver of any such breach or default, or any similar breach or default.